RECORDED IN OFFICIAL RECORDS
INSTRUMENT # 2019163720 21 PG(S)
November 27, 2019 12:41:36 PM
KAREN E. RUSHING
CLERK OF THE CIRCUIT COURT
SARASOTA COUNTY, FL

Prepared by and return to:
Michael Cochran, Esq.
Law Offices of Wells | Olah, P.A.
1800 2nd Street, Suite 808
Sarasota, Florida 34236
(941)366-9191



CERTIFICATE OF AMENDMENT BYLAWS OF

THE LINKS AT PELICAN POINTE HOMEOWNER'S ASSOCIATION, INC.

We hereby certify that the attached Amended and Restated Bylaws of THE LINKS AT PELICAN POINTE HOMEOWNER'S ASSOCIATION, INC. (herein, the "Association"), (which Declaration was originally recorded at Official Records Instrument #1998127603 of the Public Records of Sarasota County, Florida) were duly approved by the unanimous consent of the Board of Directors at its Official Records of Directors' Meeting, which is sufficient pursuant to Article XIII of the Bylaws. The Association further certifies that the Bylaws amendment was proposed and adopted as required by the governing documents and applicable law.

DATED this 26th day of NO Vember, 2019.

Signed, sealed and delivered

THE LINKS AT PELICAN POINTE HOMEOWNER'S ASSOCIATION, INC.

in the presence of:

sign: Manualle Kanualle
print: Niccle Kanwisher
sign: Sea Sea
print: Samantha Koy

By: Al Leech, President

Signed, sealed and delivered in the presence of:

sign: Marall langue

Print: Micole Kanwisher

Print: Saman-tha Roy

Joanne Jennings, Secretary

[Corporate Seal]

Argus Management of Venice, Inc. 181 Center Rd. Venice, FL 34285

STATE OF FLORIDA COUNTY OF SARASOTA

2019, by Al Leech as President of THE	acknowledged before me this Acol Inday of Molecular, ELINKS AT PELICAN POINTE HOMEOWNER'S ASSOCIATION, on behalf of the corporation. He is personally known to me or has
produced	as identification.
	NOTARY PUBLIC
	Sign: Melessale. Myst
	Print: MY (1550 A. Mor) TZ State of Florida at Large (Seal) My Commission expires:
STATE OF FLORIDA COUNTY OF SARASOTA	Meliesa A. Moritz NOTARY PUBLIC STATE OF FLORIDA Commit GG000097 Expires 6/8/2020
2019, by Joanne Jennings as Secre	acknowledged before me this Act day of Movember, tary of THE LINKS AT PELICAN POINTE HOMEOWNER'S profit corporation, on behalf of the corporation. She is personally me or has produced
	as identification.
	NOTARY PUBLIC
	Sign: Melissale Mnits
	Print: Melissa A. Moritz
	State of Florida at Large (Seal)

Meliesa A. Moritz
NOTARY PUBLIC
STATE OF FLORIDA
Commit GG000097
Expires 6/8/2020

AMENDED AND RESTATED

BYLAWS

Of

THE LINKS AT PELICAN POINTE HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION, INC. (A Corporation Not For Profit)

[Substantial rewording of Bylaws. See existing Bylaws and all amendments thereto for present text.]

ARTICLE 1. NAME, PRINCIPAL OFFICE, AND CORPORATE INFORMATION

- 1.1 Corporate Name. The name of the not for profit corporation is THE LINKS AT PELICAN POINTE HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION, INC. ("Association").
- Location of Principal Office. The principal office of the Association is located at 181 Center Road, Venice FL 34285. The Association's Board of Directors may change the Association's principal office from time to time in the manner provided by law.
- 1.3 **Corporate Seal.** The corporate seal of the Association shall bear the name of the corporation, the word "Florida", the words "corporation not for profit" and the year of incorporation (1998). Alternatively, the words "Corporate Seal" shall serve as the official seal of the Association. The corporate seal may be used by causing it, or a facsimile or copy of it, to be impressed, affixed, reproduced or otherwise placed upon any document where a corporate seal may be required.
- 1.4 **Definitions.** The definitions for various terms used in these Bylaws will be as set forth in the Amended and Restated Declaration of Covenants, Conditions, and Easements of the Links at Pelican Point (the "Declaration").

ARTICLE 2. MEMBERSHIP AND VOTING

- Qualification of Membership. Every record owner of legal title to any Lot in the Links at Pelican Pointe Subdivision is a Member of the Association. If a Lot is subject to an agreement for deed, whether recorded or not, the purchaser in possession will be treated as the owner solely for purposes of determining voting and use rights membership is appurtenant to, runs with, and may not be separated from, the real property interest upon which membership is based.
- Termination of Membership. Termination of membership in the Association does not relieve or release any former member from liability or obligation incurred under or in any way connected with the Association during the period of the person's membership, nor does it impair any rights or remedies the Association may have against any former owner or member arising out of or in any way connected with such ownership and membership, and the covenants and obligations incident thereto.
- 2.3 **Voting Interests.** Unless suspended in the manner provided by the Homeowners' Association Act, the Members of the Association are entitled to one (1) vote for each Lot owned by them in Association matters where a vote of the Members is permitted or required. The vote of a Lot is not divisible. The total number of votes ("Voting Interests") is equal to the total number of Lots subject to this Declaration (258).

- Vote Required. The acts approved by a majority of the total eligible Voting Interests present (in person or by proxy) at a membership meeting at which a quorum is obtained shall constitute the acts of the Members, except when approval by a greater number of Members is required by Florida law, the Declaration, the Articles of Incorporation or these Bylaws. The term "majority" as used in these Bylaws and other Governing Documents and instruments in reference to voting by Members and the Board of Directors shall mean more than 50%.
- 2.5 **Approval or Disapproval of Matters**. Whenever the decision or approval of an owner is required upon any matter, whether the subject of an Association meeting or not, that decision or approval may be expressed by any person who could cast the vote on that Owner's Lot at an Association meeting, as stated in this Article 2, unless the written approval or joinder of record Owners is specifically required.

2.6 Designated Voting Representative.

- A. **Single Owner.** If a Lot is owned by one person, his or her right to vote shall be established by the record title to his or her Lot. No voting certificate shall be required. However, to maintain currency of records, a Designated Voter Certificate shall be completed annually.
- B. **Multiple Owners.** If the Lot is owned by more than one person, the person entitled to cast the vote for the Lot shall be designated by a Designated Voter Certificate signed by all of the record Owners of the Lot, and filed with the Secretary of the Association.
- C. Corporation or LLC. If a Lot is owned by a corporation or limited liability company ("LLC"), the person entitled to cast the vote for the Lot shall be designated by a Designated Voter Certificate of his or her appointment signed by the president or vice president and attested by the secretary or assistant secretary of the corporation or an authorized member of the LLC, and filed with the Secretary of the Association.
- D. **Partnership.** If the Lot is owned by a partnership, the person entitled to cast the vote for the Lot shall be designated by a Designated Voter Certificate signed by a partner.
- E. **Trust.** If the Lot is owned by a trust, the person entitled to cast the vote for the Lot shall be designated by a Designated Voter Certificate signed by a trustee or grantor of the trust.

Such voting certificate shall be valid until revoked and until superseded by a subsequent certificate or until a change in the ownership of the Lot concerned. A certificate designating the person entitled to cast a vote of a Lot may be revoked by any Owner or voting representative thereof. All such voting certificates must be filed with the Association. An annual update of the Designated Voter Certificate shall be required. At any meeting of members, designated and qualified voters shall be identified by their Designated Voter Certificate or other appropriate identifier provided at the meeting by the management company.

Suspension of Voting Rights. The Association may suspend the voting rights of a Member for the nonpayment of any fee, fine or other monetary obligation due to the Association that is more than ninety (90) days delinquent. A Voting Interest allocated to a Lot or Member which has been suspended by the Association may not be counted towards the total number of Voting Interests for any purpose, including, but not limited to, the number of Voting Interests necessary to constitute a quorum, the number of Voting Interests required to conduct an election, or the number of Voting Interests required to approve an action under the Homeowners' Association Act or pursuant to the Governing Documents. The suspension ends upon full payment of fees, fines and all other obligations currently due or overdue to the Association. All suspensions of a delinquent Member's voting rights must be approved at a

properly noticed Board meeting. Upon approval, the Association must notify the Lot Owner of the suspension in writing.

- 2.8 **Proxies.** Members may cast their vote in person or by limited proxy; provided, however, that the form of the limited proxy substantially meets the requirements of Florida law. A limited proxy may be made by any person entitled to vote, and must be filed with the Secretary of the Association before or at the appointed time of the meeting or prior to the reconvening of an adjourned meeting. Proxies shall not be used in the election of Directors. To be valid, a limited proxy must state the date, time, and place of the membership meeting for which it was given, and must be signed by the person(s) authorized to cast the vote on behalf of the Lot. A limited proxy is effective only for the specific membership meeting for which it was originally given, and as the meeting may lawfully be adjourned and reconvened from time to time. Proxies automatically expire ninety (90) days after the date of the membership meeting for which it was originally given. A proxy is revocable at any time at the pleasure of the person who executes it. Any copy, facsimile transmission, or other reliable reproduction of the original proxy may be substituted or used in lieu of the original proxy for any purpose for which the original proxy could be used if the copy, facsimile transmission, or other reproduction is a complete reproduction of the entire proxy.
- Written Action by Members. Any action required by law or the Governing Documents to be taken at a meeting of the Members, or any action which may be taken at a meeting of Members, may be taken without a meeting if consents in writing, setting forth the action so taken, shall be signed by the required percentage of Members entitled to vote with respect to the subject matter thereof. Such Member action by written agreement in lieu of a membership meeting shall comply with the procedural requirements of Section 617.0701(4), Florida Statutes.

ARTICLE 3. MEETINGS OF MEMBERS

- Annual Meetings of Members. The annual meeting of the Members shall be held in January of each year, at a date, time and place within Sarasota County as specified by the Association's Board of Directors. At each annual membership meeting, the Members shall elect Directors and may conduct such other business as may be properly brought before the membership meeting. The membership shall meet at least once each calendar year.
- 3.2 **Special Membership Meetings.** The President, Vice President, or Secretary of the Association may call special meetings of the Members. In addition, it shall be the duty of the President to promptly call a special meeting of the Members if so directed by resolution adopted by a majority of the Board of Directors, or upon receipt of a written petition signed by at least twenty-five percent (25%) of the total eligible Voting Interests of the Association, which request shall state a valid purpose or purposes for the special membership meeting. The notice of any special membership meeting shall state the date, time, location, and the purpose(s) thereof. No business shall be transacted at a special membership meeting except as stated in the notice.
- Notice of Membership Meetings. The Association shall provide proper notice of all Members' meetings. The meeting notice shall include the purpose of the meeting and shall state the date, time and place for which the meeting is called. The notice shall be mailed, emailed or hand-delivered to each Member at the Member's designated address as it last appears on the books of the Association. The Association shall provide notice of the meeting to all Members not less than fourteen (14) days or more than sixty (60) days prior to the date of the membership meeting. The Association shall also post in a conspicuous place in the Subdivision the notice and agenda of the membership meeting at least five (5) days prior to the date of the membership meeting. The person providing the notice of the membership meeting shall provide proof of proper and timely notice by affidavit. Except as otherwise provided herein or by Florida law, notice of meetings of the Board of Directors, membership meetings, and committee meetings may be given by electronic transmission to those Members who consent to receive notice by electronic transmission. Each Member bears the responsibility of promptly notifying the Association in writing of any

change of address. If ownership of a Lot is transferred after a notice has been transmitted, no separate notice to the new Owner is required.

- Quorum. The presence, in person or by proxy, of Members representing at least thirty percent (30%) of the eligible total Voting Interests in the Association (that is, 78 of the 258 Voting Interests) shall constitute a quorum at all membership meetings of the Association. Members may attend a membership meeting in person or by proxy. A Voting Interest or consent right allocated to a Lot or Member which has been properly suspended by the Association's Board of Directors may not be counted towards the total number of Voting Interests necessary to constitute a quorum, the number of Voting Interests required to conduct an election, or the number of Voting Interests required to approve an action under the Homeowners' Association Act or pursuant to the Declaration, Articles of Incorporation or these Bylaws.
- Adjournment of Meetings. A majority of the Association's eligible Voting Interests who are present (in person or by proxy) at a membership meeting may adjourn the meeting to a date, time and place no more than ninety (90) days from the date the original meeting was called. At the reconvened meeting, if a quorum is present, any business which might have been transacted at the meeting originally called may be transacted. If the date, time and place for reconvening the membership meeting are not announced at the meeting before an adjournment is taken, notice of the new date, time and place for the reconvened meeting shall be given to the Members in the manner prescribed in Article 3.3 above. Any business that might have been transacted on the original date of the membership meeting may be transacted at the adjourned membership meeting.
- 3.6 **Waiver of Notice.** Notice of a membership meeting may be waived by a Member before or after a membership meeting. A Member waives any defect or lack of notice by attending a membership meeting, except when that attendance is for the expressed purpose of objecting at the beginning of the meeting to the transaction of business because the meeting is not lawfully called.
- 3.7 **Presiding Officer.** The chairperson at all membership meetings shall be the President. The President may, however, designate any other person to preside. In the absence of the President or the President's designee, the Members present (in person or by proxy) may designate any other person to preside as chairperson of the membership meeting.
- 3.8 Order of Business. Unless otherwise determined by the meeting chairman, the order of business at annual membership meetings, and as far as practical at all special membership meetings, shall be as follows:
 - A. Call Meeting to Order
 - B. Election of Chairperson (if necessary)
 - C. Determination of a Quorum
 - D. Proof of Meeting Notice or Waiver of Notice
 - E. Reading or Waiving of Previous Minutes
 - F. Reports of Officers
 - G. Reports of Committees
 - H. Election of Directors
 - I. Unfinished business
 - J. New business and Member comments
 - K. Announcements
 - L. Adjournment
- 3.9 **Minutes of Meetings.** The Secretary or the Secretary's designee shall keep the minutes of the membership meetings. The minutes of the membership meetings shall be kept in a business-like manner and be

available for inspection and copying by the Members or their authorized representatives at any reasonable time. The Association shall maintain these minutes as required by the Homeowners' Association Act.

- 3.10 **Parliamentary Rules.** Robert's Rules of Order (latest edition) shall guide the conduct of all Association meetings when not in conflict with the Homeowners' Association Act, the Not-For-Profit Corporate Act, the Declaration, the Articles of Incorporation, the Bylaws, or the Rules and Regulations.
- election of Directors, any action required or permitted to be taken at a meeting of the members may be taken by mail without a meeting if written consents or other instruments expressing approval of the action proposed to be taken are signed and returned by members having not less than the minimum number of votes that would be necessary to take such action at a meeting at which all of the voting interests were present and voting if the requisite number of written consents are received by the Secretary within sixty (60) days after the earliest date which appears on any of the consent forms received, the proposed action so authorized shall be of full force and effect as if the action had been approved by vote of the members at a meeting of the members held on the sixtieth (60th) day. Within ten (10) days thereafter, the Board shall send written notice of the action taken to all members who have not consented in writing. Nothing in this paragraph affects the rights of members to call a special meeting of the membership, as provided for by Section 3.2 above, or by law. If the vote is taken by the method described in 3.11, the list of owners on record with the Secretary at the time of mailing the voting material shall be the list of qualified voters. The written consents used to authorize an action without a meeting shall become part of the Association's records.
- 3.12 **Electronic Voting.** The Association may conduct elections and other membership votes through an Internet based on-line voting system as provided in Section 720.317, Florida Statutes.

ARTICLE 4. BOARD OF DIRECTORS

- Administration of Affairs. The governance and administration of the affairs of the Association shall be vested in the Board of Directors ("Board"). All powers and duties granted to the Association by law or in the Governing Documents shall be exercised by the Board, subject to the approval or consent of the Members only when specifically required.
 - 4.2 **Number of Directors**. The Board shall consist of five (5) Directors.
- 4.3 **Term of Office.** Directors shall serve two (2) year staggered terms of office ending at the final adjournment of the annual membership meeting at which their successors are duly elected, or at such other time as may be provided by law. The Board may temporarily assign a one (1) year term of office if necessary to implement or re-impose the proper two-year staggering of the Board of Directors. Any Director whose term is expiring may stand for re-election to the Board. All Directors shall serve until their respective successors shall have been duly elected and qualified or until their earlier resignation or removal.
- 4.4 Qualifications for Election. A Director must be a natural person who is at least eighteen (18) years of age or older. A Director must be a Lot Owner or the spouse of a Lot Owner or the designated voter of a Lot Owner who is not a natural person (that is, a corporation, LLC, trust, or partnership, etc.). If a Lot is owned in trust, a Director must be the trust grantor or a trust beneficiary who occupies the Lot. A convicted felon whose civil rights have not been restored for at least five (5) years as of the date of election is not eligible to serve as a Director. A person who is more than ninety (90) days delinquent in the payment of any fee, fine, or other monetary obligation to the Association is not eligible to serve as a Director. The validity of any action by the Board of Directors is not affected if it is later determined that one or more Directors was not eligible to serve on the Board.

- 4.5 **Election of Directors.** Proxies shall not be used in the election of Directors. The election of Directors shall be conducted by secret ballot at the annual membership meeting, in the following manner:
- A. Not less than sixty (60) days before a scheduled election of Directors, the Association shall mail, email or deliver to each Lot Owner entitled to vote, a first notice of the date of the election. Any Lot Owner or other eligible person desiring to be a candidate for the Board of Directors shall be required to give written notice, including an information sheet describing background information, i.e. qualifications and other factors deemed relevant by the candidate, to the Association not less than forty (40) days before a scheduled election. Not less than fourteen (14) days nor more than thirty-four (34) days before the membership meeting at which the election will occur, the Association shall mail, email or deliver a second notice of the meeting to all Lot Owners entitled to vote, together with a written Director election ballot which shall list all Director candidates in alphabetical order by surname. Upon request of a Director candidate received by the Association at least thirty-five (35) days prior to the election, the Association shall include with the second mailing of the Director election ballot a candidate information sheet, not larger than 8 1/2 inches by 11 inches, furnished by the Director candidate information sheets shall be paid by the Association.
- B. Written Director ballots shall be sealed in an inner, smaller envelope labeled "Director Ballot". The Director ballot envelope shall be placed in a larger outer envelope. The larger outer envelope must be sealed and shall be signed by the Designated Voter Representative, with the Designated Voting Member's Links at Pelican Pointe address and printed name stated thereon. It is the intent of the Members to follow the Director election procedures of the Condominium Act (Chapter 718, Florida Statutes) to the extent those procedures are not in conflict with the Homeowners Association Act (Chapter 720, Florida Statutes) or these Bylaws.
- C. Written Director election ballots will be available for use by those Owners attending the meeting in person. No Lot Owner shall permit another person to cast his or her Director election ballot, and any such improperly cast ballot shall be deemed invalid. Proxies shall not be used in the election of Directors. Any Lot Owner who violates this provision may be fined by the Association. Ballots shall be counted at the meeting by independent tellers (not members).
- D. If more persons are nominated than there are vacancies to be filled, the election shall be by secret ballot. Each person voting is entitled to cast his or her vote for each of as many nominees as there are vacancies to be filled. The nominees receiving the greatest number of votes properly cast shall be elected. Elections shall be decided by a plurality of the votes cast. There shall be no cumulative voting. Tie votes shall be broken by agreement among the Director candidates who are tied, or absent such an agreement, by chance, such as the flipping of a coin by a neutral third party or the drawing of straws. An election is not required unless more candidates file notices of intent to run than Director vacancies exist. No Director nominations shall be permitted from the floor of the membership meeting.

In the event that there are fewer declared candidates than existing vacancies, the director candidates who have submitted the required notice as described in Article 4.5(A) above, shall be determined to have been elected. The remaining vacancy or vacancies shall be filled by an election at the annual meeting. The prohibitions described in Article 4.5(D) above of "no nominations from the floor" and "no proxy votes" for election of directors shall be suspended for only this circumstance. It shall be required that any nominee present a brief summary of their interest in and qualifications for the position. The vote shall be conducted by secret ballot.

E. There shall be no quorum requirement for the election of Directors; however, at least twenty percent (20%) of the eligible voters must cast a Director election ballot to have a valid election.

- F. Any election dispute between a Lot Owner and the Association shall be submitted to mandatory binding arbitration with the Division of Florida Condominiums, Timeshares and Mobile Homes in the manner provided by law.
- Removal of Directors and Vacancies. Any Director may be removed or recalled from office with or without cause, upon the written agreement of a majority of the total Voting Interests of the Association in the manner provided by Section 720.303(10), Florida Statutes. Unless otherwise provided by law, upon removal of a Director, a successor shall be appointed by a majority of the remaining Board of Directors (even if less than a quorum) to fill the vacancy for the remainder of the term of such Director. Any Director who is delinquent in the payment of any fee, fine, Assessment or other monetary obligation to the Association for more than ninety (90) days is not eligible for Board membership and shall be automatically removed from office. In the event of the death, disability, or resignation of a Director, the remaining members of the Board may appoint a successor to fill the vacancy for the remainder of the term of such Director.
- Organizational Meeting. The organizational meeting of a newly elected Board of Directors for the purpose of electing officers shall be held within ten (10) days after the annual meeting of the Members at such date, time, and place as shall be fixed by the Board of Directors at the membership meeting at which they were elected. No further notice of the Board's organizational meeting shall be necessary unless business in addition to the election of officers is to be considered at that meeting.
- Regular Board Meetings. A meeting of the Board of Directors occurs whenever a quorum of the Board gathers to conduct Association business. Regular meetings of the Board of Directors may be held at such date, time and place as shall be determined, from time to time, by at least two (2) Directors or on the call of the President or Vice President. A meeting of the Board must be held at a location that is accessible to a physically handicapped person.
- 4.9 **Special Board Meetings.** Special meetings of the Board of Directors may be called by the President, the Vice President or at the written request of any two (2) Directors. If at least twenty percent (20%) of the Voting Interests deliver a written request to the Board to address an item of business, the Board shall at its next regular meeting, or at a special meeting of the Board, but not later than sixty (60) days after the receipt of the request, place the item on the Board's meeting agenda.
- Notice of Board Meetings. Notice of Board of Directors' meetings shall be given to each Director personally or by mail, email, telephone or facsimile transmission, and posted in a conspicuous place in the community at least five (5) days in advance of the meeting, except in the case of an emergency. Any Director may waive notice of a meeting before or after the meeting and such waiver shall be deemed equivalent to the giving of notice. Attendance by a Director at a meeting shall constitute waiver of notice of the meeting, except where a Director attends a meeting for the express purpose of objecting to the transaction of any business because the meeting is not lawfully called or convened.
- 4.11 **Special Notice of Certain Board Meetings.** In addition to the notice required by Article 4.10 herein, an assessment may not be levied at a Board meeting unless the notice of the meeting includes a statement that assessments will be considered and the nature of the assessments. Written notice of any meeting at which special assessments will be considered or at which amendments to rules regarding Lot use will be considered must be mailed, delivered, or electronically transmitted to the Members and posted conspicuously on the property or broadcast on closed-circuit cable television not less than fourteen (14) days before the meeting.
- 4.12 **Attendance at Board Meetings.** A Director may participate in a Board meeting via telephone, real-time videoconferencing, or similar real-time electronic or video communication and such participation counts toward a

quorum, and such Director may vote as if physically present. A speaker must be used at the meeting site so that the conversation of such person may be heard by all persons attending the meeting in person. Directors may use e-mail as a means of communication, but may not cast a vote on an Association matter via e-mail.

- Quorum and Agenda. A quorum at Director's meetings shall consist of a majority of the entire Board of Directors. The acts approved by a majority of those present at a meeting at which a quorum is present shall constitute the act of the Board of Directors; except where approval by a greater number of Directors is required by the Homeowners' Association Act, the Declaration, the Articles of Incorporation or these Bylaws. The designation of the agenda for Board of Directors' meetings shall be at the discretion of the President. However, the President shall be obligated to include any lawful item on the agenda for a Board meeting if requested in writing by two (2) Directors.
- 4.14 **Adjournment.** A majority of the Directors who are present (in person or by other permitted means) at a Board meeting may adjourn the meeting from time to time as determined appropriate by the Directors. At the adjourned meeting, any business which might have been transacted at the Board meeting as originally called may be transacted without further notice.
- 4.15 **Conduct of Meetings.** The President shall preside over all meetings of the Board of Directors and the Secretary or management shall keep a minute book containing written records of meetings of the Board of Directors, recording therein all resolutions adopted by the Board of Directors and all transactions and proceedings occurring at such meetings as well as a notation as to any Director who abstained from voting or voted contrary to the prevailing opinion. No votes at any Board of Directors meeting may be by proxy or secret ballot, except that secret ballots shall be utilized in the election of officers. A Director who is present at a Board meeting at which action on any corporate matter is taken shall be presumed to have assented to the action taken unless the Director votes against the action or abstains from voting. A vote or abstention shall be recorded in the minutes.
- 4.16 **Open Meetings.** Except for meetings with the Association's attorney for the purpose of legal advice with respect to proposed or pending litigation and meetings to discuss personnel matters, meetings of the Board of Directors shall be open to all Lot Owners. Any Member may tape record or videotape open meetings of the Board of Directors subject to reasonable rules adopted by the Board. The right to attend Board meetings includes the right to speak at such meetings with reference to all designated agenda items in accordance with any reasonable rules adopted by the Board of Directors. The Member's right to speak shall not exceed three (3) minutes unless the time to speak is extended by the presiding officer of the meeting or a majority of the Board.
- 4.17 **Delegation of Board Functions.** The Board of Directors may delegate any or all of the functions of the Secretary or Treasurer to a management agent or employee, provided that the Secretary or Treasurer shall in such instance generally supervise the agent or employee in the performance of such functions.
- salary or any other compensation from the Association for the performance of duties as a Director, officer or committee member and may not in any other way benefit financially from service to the Association. This subsection does not preclude: (a) participation by such person in a financial benefit accruing to all or a significant number of Members as a result of actions lawfully taken by the Board or a committee of which he or she is a member, including, but not limited to, routine maintenance, repair, or replacement of community assets; (b) reimbursement for out-of-pocket expenses incurred by such person on behalf of the Association, subject to approval in accordance with procedures established by the Association's Governing Documents or, in the absence of such procedures, in accordance with an approval process established by the Board; (c) any recovery of insurance proceeds derived from a policy of insurance maintained by the Association for the benefit of its Members; (d) any fee or compensation authorized in the Governing Documents; or (e) any fee or compensation authorized in advance by a vote of a majority of the Voting Interests voting in person or by proxy at a meeting of the Members.

- 4.19 **General Standard for Directors.** A Director shall discharge his or her duties as a Director, including his or her duties as a member of a committee: (a) in good faith; (b) with the care an ordinarily prudent person in a like position would exercise under similar circumstances; and (c) in a manner he or she reasonably believes to be in the best interests of the Association. In discharging his or her duties, a Director may rely on information, opinions, reports, or statements, including financial statements and other financial data, if prepared or presented by:
- A. One or more officers or employees of the corporation whom the Director reasonably believes to be reliable and competent in the matters presented;
- B. Legal counsel, public accountants, or other persons as to matters the Director reasonably believes are within the persons' professional or expert competence; or
- C. A committee of the Board of Directors of which he or she is not a member if the Director reasonably believes the committee merits confidence.

A Director is not acting in good faith if he or she has knowledge concerning the matter in question that makes reliance otherwise permitted above unwarranted. A Director is not liable for any action taken as a Director, or any failure to take any action, if he or she performed the duties of his or her office in compliance with this Article 4.19

- 4.20 **Minutes of Meetings.** The minutes of all Board meetings shall be kept in a business-like manner in a book available for inspection by Lot Owners or their authorized representatives at any reasonable time. The Association shall maintain these minutes as required by the Homeowners' Association Act.
- 4.21 **Resignation.** A Director or officer may resign at any time by delivering written notice (including but not limited to emailed notice) to any Association officer or management. A resignation is effective when the notice is delivered unless the notice specifies a later date. If the resignation is made effective at a later date, the members of the Board of Directors (including the Director whose resignation is not yet effective) may vote to fill the pending vacancy before the effective date if the Board provides that the successor does not take office until the effective date.
- 4.22 **Order of Business.** Unless otherwise determined by the meeting chairman, the order of business at Board of Directors' meetings shall be as follows:
 - A. Roll call
 - B. Proof of meeting notice or waiver of notice
 - C. Reading and disposal of unapproved minutes
 - D. Reports of officers and committees
 - E. Election of officers, if any
 - F. Unfinished business
 - G. New business and Member comments
 - H. Announcements
 - I. Adjournment

ARTICLE 5. OFFICERS

- 5.1 **Executive Officers.** The executive officers of the Association shall be a President, Vice President, Secretary, and Treasurer. All executive officers shall be elected from among the members of the Board. The Board of Directors may appoint such other officers, including one (1) or more Vice Presidents, one (1) or more Assistant Secretaries and one (1) or more Assistant Treasurers, as it shall deem desirable, such officers to have the authority and perform the duties prescribed from time to time by the Board of Directors. The offices of Secretary and Treasurer may be held by the same person. No person shall simultaneously hold more than one of any of the other offices except in the case of special offices created by the Board as described below. The Board of Directors from time to time shall appoint such other officers and assistant officers and may designate their powers and duties as the Board shall find to be required, to manage the affairs of the Association.
- 5.2 **Election Term of Office and Vacancies.** The officers of the Association shall be elected annually by the Board of Directors at the first meeting of the Board of Directors following the annual membership meeting. A vacancy in any office arising because of death, resignation, removal, or otherwise may be filled by the Board of Directors for the unexpired portion of the term of office.
- Removal. Any officer may be removed by a unanimous vote of the other members of the Board of Directors in the sole discretion of the Board. The removal or resignation of a Director who also is an officer shall automatically act as a removal of the Director as an officer.
- Resignation. Any officer may resign at any time by giving written notice (including but not limited to emailed notice) to any Association officer or management. Such written resignation shall take effect on the date of the receipt of such notice or at a later time specified in the notice and unless otherwise specified in the notice, the acceptance of the resignation shall not be necessary to make it effective.
- 5.5 **President.** The President shall be a director and the chief executive officer of the Association and shall: act as presiding officer at all meetings of the Members and the Board of Directors, call special meetings of the Members and the Board of Directors, sign, with the Secretary or Treasurer if the Board of Directors so requires, all checks, contracts, promissory notes, leases, subleases and other instruments on behalf of the Association, except those which the Board of Directors specifies may be signed by other persons, perform all acts and duties usually required of a chief executive officer to ensure that all orders and resolutions of the Board of Directors are carried out, and prepare and present an annual report to the membership at the annual meeting of Members and deliver a copy to all members.
 - Vice President. The Vice Presidents, in the order of their seniority shall, in the absence or disability of the President, exercise the powers and perform the duties of the President. The Vice President also shall assist the President generally, and exercise other powers and perform other duties as shall be prescribed by the Board of Directors.
- 5.7 **Secretary.** The Secretary shall have the following duties and responsibilities: attend the regular and special meetings of the Members and the Board of Directors and keep all records and minutes of proceedings thereof or cause the same to be done, have custody of the corporate seal, if any, and affix the same when necessary or required, attend to all correspondence on behalf of the Board of Directors and Members and act as agent for the transfer of the corporate books, and have custody of the minute book of the meetings of the Board of Directors and Members and act as agent for the transfer of the corporate books.
- 5.8 **Treasurer.** The Treasurer shall: receive monies as shall be paid into his hands for the account of the Association and disburse funds as may be ordered by the Board of Directors, taking proper vouchers for

disbursements and be custodian of all contracts, leases and other important documents of the Association which he shall keep or cause to be kept safely deposited, supervise the keeping of accounts of all financial transactions of the Association, in accordance with good accounting practices, in books belonging to the Association and deliver the books to his successor. The Treasurer shall prepare and distribute to all of the members of the Board of Directors prior to each annual meeting, and whenever else required, a summary of the financial transactions and conditions of the Association from the preceding year. The Treasurer shall prepare a year-end statement of income and expenditures to be presented to the membership at its regular annual meeting and deliver a copy to all members. The Treasurer shall make a full and accurate report on matters and business pertaining to his office to the Members at the annual meeting and make all reports required by law, may have the assistance of an accountant or auditor, who shall be in agreement, it shall be proper to delegate any or all of the Treasurer's functions to the management agent as is deemed appropriate by the Board of Directors.

ARTICLE 6. COMMITTEES

- 6.1 **Committees.** The Board of Directors may appoint committees from time to time. Members of the committee shall elect their chairperson. The members of each committee shall serve at the pleasure of the Board of Directors or until the succeeding committee members have been appointed or until their earlier resignation. Unless otherwise provided herein, each committee shall consist of at least three (3) members, all of whom must be Members of the Association, spouses of Members or a Member's designated voting representative.
- 6.2 **Architectural Review Committee.** The Architectural Review Committee ("ARC") shall have the duties and functions as provided in the Declaration.
- 6.3 Ad Hoc Committees. The Board of Directors may from time to time appoint and disband such ad hoc committees as necessary to conduct the business and affairs of the Association.
- 6.4 **Powers of Committees.** Committees will report to and be under the direction of the Board of Directors. Committee members may be appointed and removed, with or without cause, upon majority vote of the Board of Directors.
- 6.5 **Term of Office.** A person appointed to serve on a committee shall continue as such until the next annual membership meeting and until his or her successor is appointed, unless the committee be terminated sooner or the person be removed from the committee by the President, with the confirmation of the Board of Directors, the person resigns, or unless such person shall cease to qualify as a member on the committee.
- Committee Meetings. Unless otherwise provided by law or in these Bylaws, the meetings of any committee of the Association shall be open to all Members. If and where required by Article 6.7 below, notice of the date, time and place of committee meetings shall be posted in a conspicuous place within the community at least forty-eight (48) hours prior to the time of the meeting. In the alternative, notice of the meeting may be mailed or delivered to all Members at least seven (7) days in advance of the meeting. Notice of committee meetings may be published or in the alternative each committee may provide Members with a pre-arranged schedule of meetings. Members of any committee may participate in a committee meeting via telephone, real-time videoconferencing, or similar electronic or video communication and such participation counts toward a quorum and includes the right to vote as if physically present.
- 6.7 **Quorum and Procedures.** A committee may act only when a quorum (a simple majority) is present. The act of a majority of the members present at a committee meeting shall be the act of the committee. Any committee or other body with authority to make a final decision with regard to the expenditure of Association funds or

with the power to approve or disapprove architectural decisions with respect to a Lot shall follow the same procedures as the Board of Directors with regard to posting or mailing of meeting notices for members, agendas, attendance and participation by Members, as required by the Homeowners Association Act. Such committees shall be so named by the Board. All other Association committees and similar bodies are exempt from the procedural meeting and notice requirements of the Homeowners' Association Act and these Bylaws. Such committees shall adopt their own procedural rules and requirements.

- 6.8 **Scope and Rules**. The Board shall establish the goals, objectives and scope of the committee, by which each committee shall abide. The rules of operation must be consistent with these bylaws and with rules adopted by the Board of Directors.
- Reports and Action. Every committee shall report its findings directly to the President, the Board of Directors or to the Board of Directors' designee. A committee may not take any action on behalf of the Association unless the Board of Directors adopts a written resolution specifically empowering the committee to take such action.

ARTICLE 7. FISCAL MANAGEMENT

- 7.1 **Fiscal Year.** The fiscal year of the Association shall commence upon the first day of January and conclude on the thirty-first day of December. The Board of Directors is authorized to change the dates of the fiscal year as it determines appropriate.
- 7.2 **Annual Budget.** The Board of Directors shall adopt, in advance, and may amend from time to time an annual budget for each fiscal year. The budget must reflect the estimated revenues and expenses for the next fiscal year, and the estimated surplus or deficit as of the end of the current year. The budget must set out separately all fees and or charges for recreational amenities. A copy of the proposed annual budget and a notice stating the date, time, and location of the board meeting at which the budget will be considered may be transmitted to each Member not less than fourteen (14) days prior to the meeting. The proposed budget shall be detailed and shall show the amounts budgeted by income accounts and expense classifications. The minutes of the Board meeting shall reflect the adoption of the annual budget, and copies of the adopted budget may be attached to the minutes. The Association shall provide each Member with a copy of the annual budget or a written notice that a copy of the budget is available upon request at no charge to the Member.
- Annual Budget Assessment. The annual assessment, to fund the Association's annual budget, shall be paid by the Lot Owners per the payment schedule as provided by the Board. If an annual budget is not adopted or notice is not provided to the Lot Owners, the preceding budget and annual assessment shall continue until such budget is adopted or such notice is provided, as applicable. In the event the annual assessment proves to be insufficient, the budget and the assessment may be amended at any time by the Board of Directors at a duly-noticed Board meeting. The unpaid assessment for the remaining portion of the fiscal year, for which the amended assessment is made, shall be due as provided by the Board of Directors. The Board may elect to allow Owners to pay the annual assessment in installments due not less frequently than monthly.
- Reserve Funds Board Approved. The Board of Directors shall establish and maintain an adequate reserve account for the periodic maintenance, capital improvements and expenditures, cash flow shortfalls, contingencies, and other matters as determined appropriate by the Board of Directors and as set forth in the Declaration of Covenants. These funds may be spent for any purpose approved by the Board. Such reserve accounts shall be included in the Annual Budget.

- 7.5 **Reserve Funds Membership Approved**. If the Association budget includes reserves approved by the Members, such reserves shall be determined, maintained, and waived according to the requirements of Section 720.303(6), Florida Statutes, as amended from time to time, including the following:
- A. If the annual budget of the Association does not provide for reserve accounts and the Association is responsible for the repair and maintenance of capital improvements that may result in a special assessment if reserves are not provided, each financial report for the preceding fiscal year shall contain the following statement in conspicuous type: THE BUDGET OF THE ASSOCIATION DOES NOT PROVIDE FOR RESERVE ACCOUNTS FOR CAPITAL EXPENDITURES AND DEFERRED MAINTENANCE THAT MAY RESULT IN SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS. OWNERS MAY ELECT TO PROVIDE FOR RESERVE ACCOUNTS PURSUANT TO THE PROVISIONS OF SECTION 720.303(6), FLORIDA STATUTES, UPON THE APPROVAL OF NOT LESS THAN A MAJORITY OF THE TOTAL VOTING INTERESTS OF THE ASSOCIATION.
- B. The amount to be reserved shall be computed by a formula that is based upon estimated remaining useful life and estimated replacement cost or deferred maintenance expense of each reserve item. The Association may adjust replacement reserve assessments annually to take into account any changes in estimates of cost or useful life of a reserve item. Funding formulas for reserves shall be based on either a separate analysis of each of the required assets or a pooled analysis of two or more of the required assets.
- C. Once a reserve account or reserve accounts are established, the membership of the Association, upon a majority vote at a meeting at which a quorum is present, may provide for no reserves or less reserves than required by Section 720.303(6), Florida Statutes, as amended from time to time. If a meeting of the owners has been called to determine whether to waive or reduce the funding of reserves and a majority of the Members present do not affirmatively vote to waive or reduce reserves, the reserves as included in the budget shall go into effect. Any vote taken pursuant to this subsection to waive or reduce reserves shall be applicable only to one budget year.
- D. Reserve funds and any interest accruing thereon shall remain in the reserve account or accounts and shall be used only for authorized reserve expenditures unless their use for other purposes is approved in advance by a majority vote at a membership meeting at which a quorum is present.
- Special Assessments. The Board of Directors may levy special assessments against the Lots as necessary to fulfill its corporate purposes, duties, and/or functions. Special assessments are due on the date(s) provided in the Board's resolution approving the special assessment. The notice of the Board meeting to levy a special assessment must be provided in accordance with the requirements of Article 4.11 of the Bylaws. The funds collected pursuant to a special assessment must be spent for the stated purpose(s) of the special assessment and any surplus may be credited to the members' accounts, applied to the next annual budget, or applied to the reserve accounts, or any combination, as determined appropriate by the Board.
- Loans. Loans in the amount of \$100,000 or less may be contracted on behalf of the Association and evidences of indebtedness to secure such loans may be issued in the name of the Association upon the approval of a majority of the Board of Directors via a duly-adopted corporate resolution. Loans in excess of \$100,000 must be approved by the affirmative vote of at least a majority of the Association's eligible Voting Interests present (in person or by proxy) and voting at a duly-noticed membership meeting called in whole or part for that purpose. The Board may authorize the pledge and assignment of any regular or special assessment and the lien rights of the Association as security for the repayment of such loans.
- 7.8 **Expenses.** The receipts and expenditures of the Association may be credited and charged to accounts as the Board of Directors may determine, in accordance with good accounting practices as set forth herein.

- Depositories. The funds of the Association shall be deposited in such accounts as may be selected by the Board of Directors, including without limitation checking and savings accounts in one (1) or more banks and/or savings and loan associations, Certificates of Deposit, U.S. Treasury Bills and money market accounts with an investment firm or firms, all in accordance with resolutions approved by the Board of Directors. The funds shall be used only for lawful purposes of the Association, as determined by the Board of Directors. Withdrawal of monies from such accounts shall be only by checks or other appropriate instruments signed by such persons as are authorized by the Board of Directors.
- 7.10 **Fidelity Bonds.** The Association shall purchase and maintain blanket insurance or fidelity bonding for all persons who control or disburse funds of the Association, including without limitation those individuals who are authorized to sign checks and the Association President, Secretary and Treasurer and any contractor handling or responsible for Association funds. Each fidelity bond purchased by the Association shall name the Association as an obligee of the bond. The premiums for bonds shall be paid by the Association as a common expense. The fidelity bonds shall cover the maximum funds that will be in the custody of Directors, officers, employees of the Association, or a management agent, at any time while the bonds are in force.
- 7.11 **Financial Report.** A financial report shall be prepared annually by the Association and completed, or its preparation and completion shall be contracted for with a third party within ninety (90) days after the close of the fiscal year. Within twenty-one (21) days after the final financial report is completed by the Association or received from the third party, but not later than 120 days after the end of the fiscal year, the Association shall either: (a) furnish a copy of the report to each Member, or (b) provide a written notice to each Member that a copy of the report is available upon request at no charge to the Member. Any copy requested by a Member shall be furnished within ten (10) business days after receipt of the request. Financial reports shall be prepared according to the requirements of Section 720.303(7), Florida Statutes, and in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.

If not less than twenty percent (20%) of the Members petition the Board for a level of financial reporting higher than that required by Section 720.303(7), Florida Statutes, the Association shall duly notice and hold a meeting of Members within thirty (30) days of receipt of the petition for the purpose of voting on raising the level of reporting for that fiscal year. Upon approval of a majority of the total Voting Interests of the Association, the Association shall prepare or cause to be prepared, shall amend the budget or adopt a special assessment to pay for the financial report regardless of any provision to the contrary contained in the Governing Documents, and shall provide the required financial statements within ninety (90) days of the meeting or the end of the fiscal year, whichever occurs later.

- 7.12 Agreements, Contracts, Deeds, Leases, Checks, Etc. All agreements, contracts, deeds, leases, checks, and other instruments of the Association shall be executed by the President and Secretary or by such other members of the Board or officers of the Association as may be designated by resolution of the Board of Directors.
- 7.13 **Insurance.** The Association shall procure, maintain and keep in full force and effect insurance as may be required by the Declaration, Articles of Incorporation, Bylaws or the Homeowners' Association Act, or as reasonably determined necessary and appropriate by the Board of Directors from time to time to protect the interests of the Association.
- 7.14 Acceleration of Assessments. In the event any special or regular assessment is delinquent by more than thirty (30) days, the Board of Directors shall have the right to accelerate the due date of the entire unpaid balance of the Lot's annual and all special assessments for that fiscal year upon notice to the Lot Owner, and then the unpaid balance of the assessment shall come due upon the date stated in the notice, but not less than ten (10) days after delivery of the notice to the Lot Owner, or not less than twenty (20) days after the mailing of such notice to the Lot Owner by registered or certified mail, whichever shall first occur.

- Competitive Bids. All contracts as further described in this Article or any contract that is not to be fully performed within one (1) year after the making thereof for the purchase, lease, or renting of materials or equipment to be used by the Association in accomplishing its purposes under the Homeowners' Association Act or the Governing Documents, and all contracts for the provision of services, shall be in writing. If a contract for the purchase, lease, or renting of materials or equipment, or for the provision of services, requires payment by the Association that exceeds ten percent (10%) of the total annual budget of the Association, including reserves, the Association must obtain competitive bids for the materials, equipment, or services. The Association is not required to accept the lowest bid. Notwithstanding the foregoing, contracts with employees of the Association, and contracts for attorney, accountant, architect, community association manager, engineering, and landscape architect services are not subject to the provisions of this Article. Nothing contained in this Article is intended to limit the ability of the Association to obtain needed products and services in an emergency. This Article does not apply if the business entity with which the Association desires to enter into a contract is the only source of supply within the county.
- 7.16 Contract Manager. When appropriate, the Board shall retain a contract manager and/or engineer to monitor work contracted by the Association. The contract manager and/or engineer would monitor adherence to contract scope of services, budget/cost, invoices, schedule and progress, scope changes and other contract issues as they arise.

ARTICLE 8. FINING AND OTHER ENFORCEMENT

- 8.1 **Fining.** In addition to all other remedies provided for in the Declaration, the Board of Directors shall have the power to levy reasonable fines against any Member or any Member's tenant, guest, or invitee for the failure of the Member or its tenant, occupant, licensee, or invitee to comply with the provision of the Homeowners' Association Act, the Declaration, the Association Bylaws, or reasonable Rules of the Association. A Member shall be jointly and severally liable for the payment of any fine levied against the Member's tenant, guest or invitee. A fine or suspension may not be imposed by the Board of Directors without at least fourteen (14) days' notice to the person sought to be fined or suspended and an opportunity for a hearing before a committee. If the Board of Directors imposes a fine, the Association must provide written notice of such fine or suspension by mail or hand delivery to the Owner and, if applicable, to any tenant, licensee, or invitee of the Owner.
- A. Hearing Committee. The Board shall appoint a Hearing Committee, which shall be composed of at least three (3) Members who are not officers, Directors, or employees of the Association, or the spouse, parent, child, or sibling of an officer, Director, or employee of the Association. The role of the Hearing Committee is limited to determining whether to confirm or reject the fine or suspension levied by the Board.
- B. Limits on Fine Amounts. A fine may not exceed Two Hundred and Fifty Dollars (\$250.00) per violation, or \$250 per day in the case of a continuing violation with a single notice and opportunity for a hearing. No fine for a continuing violation shall exceed in the aggregate the amount of Five Thousand Dollars (\$5,000.00).
- C. Collection. Fines shall be payable within thirty (30) days. In the event a person refuses or otherwise fails to pay a fine, the Association may mediate if and as required by law and proceed with legal action in a court of competent jurisdiction to collect the sum. In any action to recover a fine, the prevailing party is entitled to reasonable attorney fees and costs from the nonprevailing party as determined by the court. A fine of less than One Thousand Dollars (\$1,000.00) may not become a lien against a Parcel; however, a fine of One Thousand Dollars (\$1,000.00) or more may become a lien against a Lot or Parcel which may be foreclosed. Fines not paid within thirty (30) days shall accrue interest at the highest rate allowed by law (currently eighteen percent (18%) per annum) and a late fee of Twenty-Five (\$25) Dollars. Any judgment obtained by the Association shall be recorded in the public

records and filed with the Florida Secretary of State. A fine of One Thousand Dollars (\$1,000.00) or more shall become a special assessment against a Lot or Parcel.

- Nonpayment of Amounts Due; Suspension of Voting Rights. An Association may suspend the voting rights of a Member for the nonpayment of any fee, fine, or other monetary obligation due to the Association that is more than ninety (90) days delinquent. A Voting Interest or consent right allocated to a Lot or Member which has been suspended by the Association shall be subtracted from the total number of Voting Interests in the Association, which shall be reduced by the number of suspended Voting Interests when calculating the total percentage or number of all Voting Interests available to take or approve any action, and the suspended Voting Interests shall not be considered for any purpose, including, but not limited to, the percentage or number of Voting Interests necessary to constitute a quorum, the percentage or number of Voting Interests required to conduct an election, or the percentage or number of Voting Interests required to approve an action under the Homeowners' Association Act or pursuant to the Governing Documents. The notice and hearing requirements under Article 8.1 hereof do not apply to a suspension imposed under this subsection. The suspension ends upon full payment of all obligations currently due or overdue to the Association.
- 8.3 **Enforcement Rights.** Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein contained, the Association's Board of Directors may elect, but shall be under no legal duty or obligation, to enforce any provisions of the Governing Documents, Homeowners' Association Act, the Declaration, these Bylaws or the Rules and Regulations as provided in said documents, or by suit at law in equity to enjoin any violation or to recover monetary damages or both. In any such action, to the maximum extent permissible, the violator shall pay all costs, including reasonable attorneys' and paralegals' fees actually incurred by the Association.

ARTICLE 9. BOOKS AND RECORDS

- 9.1 The books, records and papers of the Association shall at all times during reasonable business hours be subject to inspection by any Member. The Declaration, the Articles of Incorporation, and the Bylaws of the Association and the Rules and Regulations shall be available for inspection by any Member at the principal office of the Association or at any other location set by the Board from time to time, where copies may be purchased at a reasonable cost.
- 9.2 Minutes of all meetings of members and of the Board of Directors shall be kept in a businesslike manner and shall be available for inspection by members, or their authorized representatives, at reasonable times subsequent to transfer of control of the Association to owners other than the Declarant. The Association shall retain these minutes for at least seven (7) years.
- 9.3 The Association shall maintain each of the following items, when applicable, which shall constitute the official records of the Association:
- 9.3.1 A copy of the plans, specifications, permits, and warranties for improvements to the Neighborhood Common Property, but not including the construction drawings of the individual homes and lots.
 - 9.3.2 A copy of the Bylaws of this Association and of each amendment to the Bylaws.
- 9.3.3 A copy of the Articles of Incorporation of the Association, or other documents creating the Association, and of each amendment thereto;

- 9.3.4 A copy of the Declaration and each amendment thereto.
- 9.3.5 A copy of the current rules of the Association.
- 9.3.6 The minutes of all meetings of the Association, of the Board of Directors and of members, which minutes shall be retained for at least seven (7) years.
- 9.3.7 A current roster of all members and their mailing addresses, parcel identifications, telephone numbers, e-mail addresses and unit designated voter representative. A current listing of all approved leases or rentals, as obtained from the Lease Application form, shall also be maintained.
- 9.3.8 All current insurance policies of the Association or a copy thereof, which policies must be retained for at least seven (7) years.
- 9.3.9 A current copy of all contracts to which the Association is a party, including any management agreement, lease, or other contract to which the Association is a party or under which the Association has an obligation or responsibility. Bids for work to be performed shall also be considered official records and shall be maintained for a period of one (1) year.
- 9.3.10 Accounting records for the Association and separate accounting records for each parcel, according to generally accepted accounting principles. All accounting records shall be maintained for at least seven (7) years. The accounting records shall be open to inspection by members or their authorized representatives at reasonable times. The failure of the Association to permit inspection of its accounting records by a Member or their authorized representatives entities any person prevailing in an enforcement action to recover reasonable attorney's fees from the person in control of the books and records who, directly or indirectly, knowingly denied access to the books and records for inspection. The accounting records shall include, but are not limited to: (1) accurate, itemized, and detailed records of all receipts and expenditures; (2) a current account and a periodic statement of the account for each Member of the Association, designating the name of the Member, the due date and amount of each assessment, the amount paid upon the account, and the balance due; (3) all tax returns, financial statements, and financial reports of the Association; and (4) any other records that identify, measure, record, or communicate financial information.
- ARTICLE 10. RULES AND REGULATIONS; USE RESTRICTIONS. The Association's Board of Directors may from time to time adopt and amend reasonable rules and regulations governing the Lots, and the operation of the Association. Copies of such rules and regulations shall be furnished to each Owner.
- **ARTICLE 11. AMENDMENTS.** These Bylaws may be amended in the following manner:
- 11.1 **Proposal.** An amendment to these Bylaws may be proposed by a majority of the Board of Directors or by written petition signed by no less than twenty-five (25%) of the Association's total eligible Voting Interests. If by written petition, the proposed amendments must be submitted to a vote of the Association not later than the next annual membership meeting.
- 11.2 **Vote Required.** The Bylaws may be amended by the approval of a majority of the Board of Directors at a regular Board meeting.

11.3 **Certification.** A copy of each amendment to these Bylaws shall be recorded in the Official Records of Sarasota County, Florida, along with a certificate of amendment executed by the appropriate officers of the Association attesting that the amendment has been lawfully adopted. An amendment becomes legally effective when filed and recorded as provided herein.

ARTICLE 12. MISCELLANEOUS

- 12.1 **Interpretation.** Unless defined herein, terms used herein shall have the same meaning as provided in the Declaration or the Homeowners' Association Act. The Board of Directors is responsible for interpreting the provisions of the Declaration, the Bylaws, the Articles of Incorporation, and the Rules and Regulations. The Board of Directors' interpretation shall be binding upon all parties unless wholly unreasonable and arbitrary.
- Definitions. If a term is not defined herein or in the Declaration or the Homeowners' Association Act or is deemed ambiguous, the Board of Directors shall be responsible for defining the term in its reasonable discretion. The Board of Directors may refer to the Florida Building Code (latest edition), the common or historical use of the term in the community or refer to a common dictionary when defining a term. The Board of Directors' definition shall be binding on all parties unless wholly unreasonable and arbitrary.
- 12.3 **Florida Statutes.** Any reference to a statute or statutory provision herein, including, but not limited to, the Homeowners' Association Act and the Florida Not for Profit Corporation Act, shall automatically include all future amendments and renumbering from time to time.
- 12.4 **Governing Documents.** The term "Governing Documents," as used in these Bylaws and elsewhere shall mean the Amended and Restated Declaration of Covenants, Conditions and Easements of The Links at Pelican Pointe, the Articles of Incorporation of the Links at Pelican Pointe Homeowners Association. Inc., the Bylaws of the Links at Pelican Pointe Homeowners Association. Inc., and the Rules and Regulations of the Links at Pelican Pointe Homeowners Association. Inc.
- 12.5 **Gender.** The use of the term "he," "she," "his," "hers," "their," "theirs" and all other similar pronouns should be construed to include all genders and encompass the plural as well as the singular.
- 12.6 **Severability.** In the event that any provisions of these Bylaws are deemed invalid, the remaining provisions shall be deemed in full force and effect.
- 12.7 **Headings.** The headings of paragraphs or sections herein are for convenience purposes only, and shall not be used to alter or interpret the provisions therein.
- 12.8 **Cumulative Rights.** All rights, remedies and privileges granted to the Association hereunder shall be deemed to be cumulative and the exercise of any one or more shall not be deemed to constitute an election of remedies, nor shall it preclude the party thus exercising the same from exercising such other and additional rights, remedies, or privileges as may be granted to such other party by the Association's Governing Documents, or at law or in equity.
- 12.9 Attorney's Fees and Waiver. The Association may also charge a Lot for any reasonable attorney's fees and costs incurred in obtaining compliance by the Owner or tenant thereof and such charge shall be payable and collectible in the same manner as an assessment by the Association as provided in the Declaration. The failure to enforce any provision of the Declaration or Rules and Regulations shall in no event be deemed a waiver of the

right to enforce as aforesaid thereafter as to the same breach or violation occurring prior or subsequent thereto. The failure of the Board of Directors to enforce any provision of the Declaration, Articles of Incorporation, Bylaws or Rules and Regulations shall not be deemed a waiver of the right of the Board of Directors to do so thereafter.	
Amended and Restated Bylaws Links at Pelican Pointe Homeowners Association, Inc. Page 19 of 19 - Final Draft	